
Date of meeting Wednesday, 16th December, 2015

Time 10.00 am

Venue Reception Room 6 - Civic Offices, Merrial Street, 
Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 2AG

Contact G Durham (74)2222

Asset Policy Committee

AGENDA

PART 1 – OPEN AGENDA

1 Apologies  
2 Declarations of Interest  
3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
4 Planned Capital Expenditure  (Pages 3 - 6)
5 Funding Options  (Pages 7 - 10)
6 Asset Policy Committee Policy Paper  (Pages 11 - 20)
7 Any Other Business  

Members: Councillors Huckfield, Loades, Shenton, Stringer, Tagg, Turner and Williams

PLEASE NOTE: The Council Chamber and Committee Room 1 are fitted with a loop system.  In addition, 
there is a volume button on the base of the microphones.  A portable loop system is available for all 
other rooms.  Should you require this service, please contact Member Services during the afternoon 
prior to the meeting.

Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of  the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting.

Meeting Quorums :- 16+= 5 Members; 10-15=4 Members; 5-9=3 Members; 5 or less = 2 Members.
FIELD_TITLE

Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items.





ASSETS POLICY COMMITTEE - 16 DECEMBER 2015

THE COUNCIL’S PLANNED CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

1. Purpose of Report

To provide members with an update in respect of the “Newcastle Capital Investment 
Programme” (NCIP), identifying the investment required over the next four years.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Assets Policy Committee endorses the process that has been 
followed in the compilation of the capital investment programme recognising 
the need for substantial resources to be identified to fund the programme.

 
3. Reasons

3.1 To set out the capital expenditure required for which funding will need to be made 
available.

 

4. Background

4.1 In February 2014 Cabinet approved a report entitled the “Newcastle Capital 
Investment Programme (NCIP)” which was subsequently endorsed by full Council 
as part of the approval of the Capital Strategy in February 2015.

4.2 The NCIP report set out the investment needed over the period spanning 2015/16 
to 2018/19 that would need to be financed by the Council from its own resources:

 to replace or maintain operational assets so that services can continue 
to be provided in accordance with corporate priorities;

 to ensure the safety and comfort of staff and customers;
 to comply with statutory provisions eg health and safety, disabled 

facilities grants;
 to maintain the stock of investment assets such as shops and 

industrial units in order to comply with landlord responsibilities and to 
safeguard future investment income from these assets;

 to fulfil its environmental and heritage responsibilities.
 

4.3 Over the 4 year period the total investment required, grouped into six themed 
categories, was estimated at £18.859m.

4.4 The programme did not include the provision of new facilities or other 
development expenditure, for example in respect of economic development 
activities or a modern leisure facility in Kidsgrove or investment in the Museum 
with a view to it being in a condition where it would be feasible to transfer it to a 
Trust in 5 years’ time.

4.5 As discussed at last week’s committee meeting, the intention of this item is not to 
go through any of the detailed expenditure but for members to note and 



acknowledge the processes in place that identify the significant future capital 
investment need. 

5. Updating and Reassessment of Capital Expenditure

5.1 Since the February 2014 Cabinet report was agreed, the investment needs have 
been reassessed, firstly when the capital programme for 2015/16 was compiled 
and secondly following the establishment of the Assets Review Group (ARG). The 
ARG reviewed the programme and has commenced a process of prioritisation. In 
addition, a further year (2019/20) has been added to ensure a rolling 4 year 
programme. Furthermore, new projects have been approved during the last few 
months and added to the programme (eg the new waste and recycling service and 
the Civic Hub).

5.2 The table below shows the estimated investment required over the next four 
years:

Investment Type 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Totals
£’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s £’000s

Improving Housing in 
the Borough

515 540 540 540 2,135

Investing in 
community facilities

582 1,034 893 325 2,834

Community centres 62 505 118 25 709
Safeguarding the 
Borough’s heritage

65 136 159 139 499

Investing for the future 2,997 689 1,018 1,776 6,480
Vehicles and Plant 2,186 880 204 573 3,843

TOTAL 6,406 3,784 2,931 3,378 16,500

5.3 A reconciliation of the changes between the requirement in the February 2014 
report, referred to in paragraph 4.3, and the investment now required, as identified 
in the table above, is shown below:

DETAIL £’000
CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2015/16 TO 2018/19 
APPENDED TO 2015 TO 2019 CAPITAL STRATEGY 18,859

CHANGES:

  Included in 2015/16 Capital Programme (1,235)

  Projects Deleted:

 Works re Properties to be disposed of as part of Civic Hub   
development (1,301)

    Works re Properties Sold (975)

    Other Deletions (1,212)

New Projects 1,471

Projects put back to 2019/20 or later (3,535)

Changes to Estimated Costs of Projects (850)

Civic Hub element to be funded from Council resources 1,900

Updated Programme up to 31 March 2019 (Years 2016/17 to 
2018/19) 13,121

Addition of a further Year’s Projects (2019/20) * 3,378

UPDATED CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2016/17 TO 
2019/20 16,500



* The further year’s projects include new projects, continuation of “provisions” made 
for ongoing expenditure, (e.g. re footpath repairs, disabled facilities grants, etc) and 
some projects included in the  “projects put back to 2019/20 or later” line in the table 
in arriving at the reconciliation up to 31 March 2020.

A full detailed breakdown of the £16.5m capital requirement to be funded by the 
Council’s own resources is available on request. 

6. Conclusions

6.1 Extensive work has gone in to producing and updating the Council’s Capital 
Investment Programme and the required need for resources over the next few 
years.

6.2 Whilst certain schemes and work could be delayed, or not done at all, it would not 
significantly change the considerable investment required by the Council in the 
medium term.





Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

ASSETS POLICY COMMITTEE – 16 DECEMBER 2015

FUNDING OPTIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

1. Purpose of Report

To provide members with an outline of the options available to fund the Council’s 
capital investment programme, and to identify the options to be taken forward. 

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Assets Policy Committee reaffirms the decision of Cabinet taken in 
October 2014 “that the Council as a first resort, will seek to fund its known 
capital programme needs through the annual asset management planning 
process by the identification of land or property in its ownership that is 
capable of, and appropriate for, disposal”.

2.2 That the Assets Policy Committee recommends to full Council that provision is made 
in future revenue budgets for prudential borrowing.     

3. Reasons

3.1 To agree the options available to fund the Council’s capital investment programme.

4.    Background

4.1 In October 2014 Cabinet approved a report entitled “Funding the Council’s Capital 
Programme” which was subsequently endorsed by full Council as part of the 
approval of the Capital Strategy in February 2015.

4.2 The report set out the options for funding the capital investment required over the 
next four years (2015/16 to 2018/19) and the means of providing a continuing 
sustainable funding flow into the future. It concluded that the only realistic option 
to meet investment needs was a systematic programme of surplus land disposal 
which also enabled the Council to deliver its policy objective of bringing forward 
more affordable and social housing by the release of some of its land holdings. 
The alternative of borrowing to part fund the programme was seen to be a more 
expensive option owing to the cost of servicing the debt.

4.3 Accordingly, the main recommendation that was approved was: “That Cabinet 
agrees with the principle that the Council as a first resort, will seek to fund 
its known capital programme needs through the annual asset management 
planning process by the identification of land or property in its ownership 
that is capable of, and appropriate for, disposal”.

5. Funding Capital Expenditure

5.1 Local authorities can derive capital monies from a number of sources as outlined 
below:

5.2 Central Government Funding - this used to be a major source of funding but has 
declined significantly over the last few years. The Council has in the past 
benefited from funding regimes such as the Single Regeneration Budget (SRB) 
and the North Staffordshire Housing Market Renewal Programme. Very few 



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

funding opportunities currently exist other than those which are linked or ring 
fenced to types of expenditure e.g. the Better Care Fund which is used to largely 
fund disabled facilities grants.

5.3 Capital Receipts from Right to Buy (RTB) Sales - the Council still receives a 
share of the receipts from RTB sales and will continue to do so until 2030. 
However, these are now minimal - only £448,000 was received for sales in 
2014/15 compared to £1.7m for sales in 2007/08. In addition, full Council agreed 
on 23 September 2015 to earmark the next £750,000 worth of receipts, over the 
next two years, to part fund the Civic Hub project.

5.4 Revenue Contributions - local authorities are allowed to use these to fund their 
capital programmes. However, these are currently unaffordable due to the 
pressures that presently exist on the Council’s revenue budget.

5.5 New Homes Bonus (NHB) - since 2011/12 local authorities have received 
funding via NHB. This is based on the number of new properties that come into a 
local authority’s area each year. The money is not ring fenced and can be used for 
either capital or revenue. The majority of councils have used the money in their 
General Funds to compensate for the loss of Revenue Support Grant. However, 
the Borough Council has used approximately £500,000 of this funding each year 
to contribute towards delivery of the capital programme. A review of NHB was 
announced by the Chancellor as part of the recent spending review. Details of this 
are expected to be included as part of the Local Government Financial Settlement 
announcement on 16 or 17 December. The proposals will include reducing the 
current funding from six years to four years.

5.6 Section 106 Contributions - historically Councils have been able to derive capital 
funding for specific projects or infrastructure improvements through Section 106 
planning obligations (payments). This is in the main from developers and in simple 
terms it has to relate to their development proposals in scale, nature and location 
although decreasing levels of funding are available from this source because of 
legislative changes. There is the potential in future to secure such infrastructure 
investment from the establishment of a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), 
although this is unlikely to be in place until around 2018 (i.e. once the Local Plan 
has been adopted). This source of funding is therefore considered to be ring 
fenced and would not provide support for the Council’s wider capital expenditure 
requirements.

5.7 Contributions from Partners or Other Bodies - Sometimes projects are carried 
out in conjunction with partners who may provide some funding towards the cost. 
It is also possible to obtain funding for specific types of project from specialised 
funding bodies. None of the projects included in the programme are likely to 
attract significant funding of this nature. 

5.8 For the reasons outlined above, with the exception of some funding from NHB, 
these sources are not options for the funding of the £16.5m expenditure 
programme outlined in the previous report on the agenda. Therefore, that leaves 
two possible options to fund the programme. These are borrowing and capital 
receipts from the sale of assets.

5.9 Borrowing - the Council is currently debt free and has been since the receipt for 
the transfer of its housing stock to Aspire in 2000. Councils can borrow money to 
fund capital works and this can be done through the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB) or commercial financial institutions or possibly from other local authorities. 
Whilst at present borrowing can be undertaken at relatively low cost it is expected 



Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

Classification: NULBC PROTECT Organisational

that interest rates will rise in the medium term from their current historically low 
levels. 

Local authority borrowing is regulated through the Prudential Code issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), which has statutory 
effect through the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015). The primary 
requirement of the Code is that borrowing must be affordable and the revenue 
consequences must be fully understood and considered before its use. This would 
take place via consideration of the Treasury Management Strategy and a 
paragraph that is required to be included in the budget report to be considered by 
Full Council stating the revenue consequences of proposed capital expenditure. 
The cost of borrowing must be charged to the General Fund revenue account. 
Charges comprise two elements, the interest paid to lenders and, more 
significantly, an amount, referred to as the “minimum revenue provision (MRP)” 
intended to provide sufficient to repay the loan at maturity. The annual interest is 
charged each year as it is paid. The MRP is also an annual charge, which 
continues for the term of the loan, or until it is repaid, and is subject to statutory 
requirements as to its method of calculation. 

There are a number of options set out in statutory Guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State and the Council’s MRP Policy appended to the Treasury 
Management Strategy states that the council will use the Asset Life method. This 
entails dividing the amount borrowed by the life of the asset created or how long 
works to an asset will last, e.g. borrowing for the purchase of a vehicle with a life 
of 8 years costing £80,000 will result in a £10,000 charge. MRP charges 
commence in the year after the expenditure is incurred, so for expenditure in 
2016/17 there will be no MRP charge until 2017/18. The Council can also fund 
capital expenditure temporarily if it has a positive cash flow or via temporary 
borrowing but cannot have unfinanced capital expenditure at the end of the 
financial year.

 

5.10 Capital Receipts from the Sale of Assets - councils are under a statutory duty to 
maintain good stewardship of their assets. It is good practice, actively encouraged 
by successive Governments, for councils to keep their assets under review and to 
release assets which are no longer required for service or other uses and to 
recycle the receipts from them into priority spending areas. The strategy 
acknowledges the additional benefits of enabling the development of surplus land 
to meet growing housing development needs. The Council has a process of 
assets review which is undertaken annually through the Asset Management 
Strategy. 

   

6. Conclusions

6.1 The Council has two main options to fund its capital programme - borrowing and 
capital receipts from the sale of assets.

6.2 The current pressures on the revenue budget mean that extensive prudential 
borrowing is unaffordable in the short term. However, it is proposed to 
incrementally include provision in the revenue budget from 2017/18 onwards to 
build in to the base budget funding for future borrowing costs. 

6.3 The Council should continue to pursue and maximise capital receipts from the 
sale of assets. 





Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
1

Asset Policy Committee Policy Paper – 16th December 2015

Purpose of report
To review the national policies and approaches to asset management, the local policies 
which relate to the Council’s management of land assets and to consider whether the 
Council’s Asset Management Strategy fulfils the relevant policy objectives, particularly in 
relation to the retention and disposal of land.

Recommendation
That members reaffirm the policy framework and approach to land disposals as set 
out in the current Asset Management Strategy.

Reasons 
It is important for members to be satisfied that the policy framework within which land 
disposals are undertaken is suitably robust and provides a clear framework for decision-
making. The report has been peer-reviewed by the regional office of the Homes and 
Communities Agency (HCA) in order to demonstrate consistency and clarity of policy 
interpretation that is relevant to the matter of public sector land disposal. The comments of 
the HCA have been incorporated into this final version of the report.

1.0 National Policies 
Over the past 15 years there have been several documents from different governments 
outlining the need for public assets to be properly managed to achieve the best outcomes in 
the wider public interest. Equally there has been a prominent approach to support 
development for economic growth and to meet the needs of the local community. This is in 
line with the NPPF (National Planning Policy Framework).  A brief summary of the key 
documents is set out below.

(i) “Hot property” -  getting the best from local authority assets (2000)
This document was written by the Audit Commission to outline how local authorities need to 
view property as a strategic resource and challenge how well it contributes to their core 
service objectives.

It also outlines how all assets have an ‘opportunity cost’, over and above any cash outlay in 
the form of day-to-day running costs. In simple terms, this means that retaining a property 
ties up investment that could be directed elsewhere.

It was recognised that many Councils are working hard to get the best from their property 
assets, but most would benefit from taking more active measures, including ensuring that all 
property is fully incorporated into corporate and service planning, plus reviewing the need to 
retain holdings, especially those that do not contribute to service objectives.

The document highlighted how assets need a high level of scrutiny to ensure that their 
potential to support service improvement is fully exploited. The argument for accelerating the 
pace of change rests on:



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
2

• rising expectations of service quality, in particular, growing pressures services;
• the pressing need for authorities to demonstrate best value, or face intervention;
• public demand for services that are ‘joined up’ and easier to access; and
• the promise of greater access to capital resources if they can demonstrate a sound 
approach to asset management planning.

Whilst the document is fifteen years old the main sentiments remain valid today.

(ii) Accelerating the release of public sector land (March 2011)
Tackling the sustained shortfall in housing development was an early priority of national 
government following the outcome of the General Election in 2011. “The Plan for Growth” 
published in March 2011, set out a plan to put the UK on a path to sustainable, long-term 
economic growth. Tackling the sustained shortfall in housing development is a Government 
priority and was a key objective of the overall plan.

The accompanying document “Accelerating the release of public sector land” (2011) 
highlighted that it is critical to growth that there is a supply of suitable, viable and 
developable land. The Government highlighted that it was important to ensure that land is 
brought forward, reflecting local demand and making sure the sale of parcels of public land, 
and the terms on which they are offered, facilitate building in the current economic climate. 
It has been estimated that 40 per cent of land suitable for development sits within public 
sector land banks – that includes both central and local government.
Disposals will be undertaken on a site-by-site basis and as a result individual disposals will 
be dependent on local market conditions and the demand for land. Departments are required 
to obtain best consideration for their disposals within the current market conditions as set out 
in “Managing Public Money” (HM Treasury).

This national paper identified that Local Authorities have strong incentives to release surplus 
land to the market efficiently as they retain all receipts from such sales.

(iii) Defence Infrastructure Interim Land and Property Disposal Strategy 2011
This document has been written by the MOD. It was adopted following the commitment by 
Central Government to dispose of surplus public sector land. The MOD has agreed to the 
target; of selling land with the capacity to deliver up to 31,000 new homes.

The MOD has categorised it land into two categories; land which is deemed as necessary for 
its operations which will not be sold and land which has been deemed to be surplus.

The document states that the MOD will seek to get the best price for its land and to work 
with various Planning bodies; local authorities and LEPs to get planning permission. 

The document states that the MOD will invest to de-risk sites prior to disposal. This will be 
restricted to the minimal investment necessary for disposal. It also says that the disposal of 
the land will be through a competitive process.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
3

(iv) Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) Land Disposal Policy (2014)
The policy explains the issues and the procedures that the Government’s national 
regeneration agency, the HCA, will follow in marketing and disposing of its land and property 
holdings. The policy precedes the Land Development and Disposal Plan (LDDP) in which 
the HCA has identified and listed the land and property holdings for disposal.

The HCA has set various approaches to the disposal of the land, explaining that as it holds a 
diverse land portfolio – ‘one size does not fit all’. A flow chart has been produced, which 
shows the approach to procurement depending on the type of land within its ownership. 

If a site is deemed as a development site, a decision is made as to whether the HCA 
requires control over the development. Where control is required disposal will be undertaken 
as procurement of works and if no control is required it will be disposed with no procurement 
works.

(v) National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012)
The Government said it was committed to building one million more homes by 2020 and 
would ensure that the planning system did everything it could to support sustainable 
economic growth in order to create jobs and prosperity and to deliver the homes that the 
community needed. It went on to say, therefore, as a core planning principle of the NPPF 
that every effort should be made objectively to identify and meet the housing, business and 
development needs of an area, and respond positively to wider opportunities for growth. As 
a consequence the national planning policy places a responsibility on Local Planning 
Authorities (LPAs) to boost significantly the supply of housing as this is vital to deliver a wide 
choice of high quality homes to meet the needs of different groups in the community (such 
as, families with children, older people etc.) However there is an increasing emphasis on 
home ownership and therefore changes are now being proposed to the planning system to 
increase the supply of starter homes and to expand the range of low cost housing 
opportunities for those aspiring to own their own home. 

To boost the supply of housing LPAs must identify key sites which are critical to delivering 
the housing strategy over the plan period. This includes an obligation to maintain a supply of 
specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide five years’ worth of housing against the local 
housing requirement with an additional buffer of up to 20% where there has been persistent 
under delivery in the past. This is to ensure competition and choice in the market for land. It 
is also necessary, to ensure there is a long term supply of new homes and consequently 
there is a responsibility to identify a supply of specific, developable sites or broad locations 
of growth, for 6-10 years and where possible 11-15 years.  

(vi) National Spending Review (November 2015)
 The government has previously committed to releasing enough land, by 2020, to build 
150,000 homes. The recent Spending Review and Autumn Statement announced that 
government departments have now committed to sell land for more than 160,000 homes. In 
addition to the land released by central government departments, the Greater London 
Authority is in the process of disposing of land for a further 5,000 homes. It was indicated 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
4

that Local Authorities can also play a key role in selling land for housing and the government 
will set the contribution that such land disposals can make by the time of the next Budget.
 
Table showing sales of land for housing agreed as part of spending review settlements 

Government Department
Estimated housing capacity of 
land released by 2020 

Ministry of Defence 55,000

Department for Transport 38,000

Department for Communities and Local Government 36,000

Department of Health 26,000

Ministry of Justice 5,000

Department for Business, Innovation and Skills 1,000
TOTAL 161,000

The spending review also talks about the new Starter Home programme and the expectation 
there will be a large contribution to be made by the public sector in delivering this 
programme. For example it is likely the HCA will be tasked with securing new land for its 
delivery; this will include discussions with local authorities as to how their surplus land will 
contribute to delivery of this outcome. 

2.0 Staffordshire-wide Strategies
 
(i) Local Growth Strategy
The Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) has prepared a 
Strategic Economic Plan against which the LEP can plan its investment to help drive 
economic growth to 2030. This plan reflects the priorities in the council’s own Economic 
Development Strategy and sets out an ambitious countywide vision for the area based upon 
a number of priorities including specific aim to facilitate the rapid growth of Stoke-on-Trent.

(ii) Staffordshire Housing Investment Strategy 
Earlier this year the LEP commissioned a Housing Investment Strategy. It was 
commissioned because of the LEP’s recognition of the contribution housing makes to 
economic growth and the criticality of an improved housing offer has on delivering their 
growth objectives. 

The strategy seeks to encourage stakeholders to work together to deliver sufficient housing 
of a type and tenure that meets the strategic aspirations of the LEP while encouraging 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
5

partners to bring forward previously developed land. The strategy also promotes Newcastle 
as an area for Housing Growth. 

3.0 Newcastle Borough Council’s Local Policies 

(i) Council Plan 2014-2016
The Council Plan has set out a number of outcomes; things that it wants to achieve and see 
within the Borough. One of the outcomes is that Newcastle will be ‘A borough of Opportunity. 
We will work with our partners to maximise investment and encourage enterprise and 
employment - generating activities that will create opportunities for improving the wealth, 
prosperity and housing choices of our residents’.

The Council seeks to ensure that housing will be available and accessible to meet a range of 
diverse needs which is both appropriate and affordable.

To achieve this outcome the Council will be through partnership working with Registered 
Providers and the Homes and Communities Agency to deliver new affordable housing and 
the encouragement and support to private home owners to return their empty properties 
back into use.

There is explicit reference to the role of the Council’s asset disposal programme in 
facilitating economic growth. In particular the Council Plan states that: “The first phase of a 
five year plan to sell some of the council’s surplus land and property has come forward for 
public consultation. The council is proposing to sell some assets in its property portfolio to 
bring funds to support the capital programmes. Cuts in Government funding means the 
capital programme will depend on generating capital receipts for the foreseeable future. The 
disposal of a range of assets which are surplus to requirements will allow the council to 
preserve services and invest in projects to meet community needs whilst avoiding costly 
borrowing to shore up its finances. 

All land and property owned by the council is regularly assessed and the sites for disposal 
fall into one of the following categories:-
• Brownfield sites
• Green sites that do not form part of the council’s Green Spaces Strategy
• Sites identified in the Green Spaces Strategy that could have a better alternative use
• Sites identified in the strategy which form a small part of a larger site and the removal of 
which would not impact significantly on the green space.

Further tranches of land and property will be brought forward for public consultation and 
potential disposal in the next few years and is expected to raise £7 million to support 
services and project.”

(ii) Capital Strategy 2014 to 2017
The purpose of the Capital Strategy is to set out how the Council proposes to deploy its 
capital resources in order to assist in achieving its corporate and service objectives.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
6

The Council through its policies across all departments has identified a number of actions 
and projects which it intends to carry out. These projects require capital funding to be 
delivered. This strategy sets out the broad principles for allocating this funding, and then the 
Capital Funding programme allocates the funding to the individual projects.

The strategy recognises that “a background of continuing reductions in funding provided to 
local authorities by central government and its agencies, arising from the need to restrain 
public expenditure owing to the ongoing economic conditions and to rebalance public 
finances. At the same time, the Council’s own resources available to finance capital projects 
have reduced to a low level and will need replenishing before any substantial further capital 
investments can be made.” 

(iii) Economic Strategy 2012-2017
The Economic Strategy sets out a five-year programme of interventions targeted at 
improving the economic performance of the borough including the following objective:
“Enabling the development of higher quality housing for current and future residents with the 
explicit aim to increase the attractiveness of North Staffordshire as a home for affluent 
residents.”

The Strategy states that there would considerable economic benefit if a larger proportion of 
the higher income people were to live in or close to the urban area of the Borough.

The strategy set out that the Borough Council will identify suitable sites for new development 
and makes some provision for higher value housing. It provides an indication of the 
‘geographical preference’ for higher values housing. This being within the areas of Keele, 
Loggerheads and Whitmore, and Westlands as nearly all of the E and H banded residential 
properties are in these wards.

(iv) Newcastle under Lyme Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013 – 2018
The strategy recognises that “housing has a correlation with health, where decent, suitable 
accommodation will have a positive impact on the health of the household. Conversely, poor, 
unfit accommodation, which is not suitable, will have an adverse impact on both the physical 
and the mental health of the household”.

The strategy considers the quality issues within existing housing stock. It mentions:
 Housing Stock Conditions / Hazards
 Fuel Poverty / Energy Efficiency
 Housing Adaptations 

(v) North Staffordshire Green Space Strategy (2007)
The council formally adopted the current urban North Staffordshire green space strategy in 
2009, after a comprehensive audit and community needs assessment which was carried out 
in 2005/06, and the preparation of the draft strategy in 2007. 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
7

The purpose of the green space strategy is to ensure that green space in urban North 
Staffordshire fulfils it’s potential to deliver a wide range of environmental, economic and 
social benefits through a strategic approach to planning and management.

Aims
The green space strategy aims to:

 Ensure that the strategic planning, management and maintenance of the 
conurbation’s green space supports the environmental, economic and social 
regeneration of urban North Staffordshire;

 Improve the quality, accessibility and coherence of green spaces within urban 
North Staffordshire;

 Promote the coordination of responsibilities and resource allocation across 
agencies, authorities and local groups to improve service delivery and to 
maximise the potential of available funding;

 Raise the profile and importance of quality green space as a key ingredient in the 
delivery of sustainable communities and housing market renewal;
 Create a strategic framework that provides for a coherent and coordinated 

approach to the creation, improvement, protection, disposal, management, 
maintenance and funding of green spaces within urban North Staffordshire, 
which can be embedded within strategic and local policy by providing a 
robust, coherent and clear set of tools for delivery at a local level;

 Highlight the value of green space in contributing to corporate strategic aims and 
objectives. 

Objectives 
The objectives of the green space strategy are to:

 Define a set of comprehensive, coherent and locally applicable green space 
standards which can be embedded in conurbation and local spatial planning 
policy and can be used for master planning and development processes;

 Define a set of green space standards that will allow green spaces to be created 
and maintained to a good quality and form part of a coherent and well-managed 
green space network that responds to the needs of the local community;

 Define the spatial framework for the application of green space standards, taking 
into account existing and proposed planning policy, existing strategic landscape 
initiatives and existing landscape and ecological designations, as well as the 
development priorities emerging from large-scale regeneration and renewal work 
of the NSRP;

 Create a clear action plan for the coordination of green space management and 
delivery that responds to and is used for the creation of sustainable communities 
and the objectives for local housing market renewal;

 Review organisational structure to seek to clearly define hierarchies and 
responsibilities for delivering and managing good quality green space involving all 
relevant agencies as well as local and neighbourhood groups;



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
8

 Calculate capital and revenue costs for delivering the local standards for quantity 
and quality of green space in urban North Staffordshire;

 Identify the investment priorities and potential funding sources that could be 
accessed or reassessed to support the management, delivery and enhancement 
of green space for existing and future populations;

 Establish a set of performance indicators that can be used to measure and 
review the performance of service delivery in relation to green space provision;

 Identify clear links with parallel strategic initiatives that will have an impact on or 
will be informed by the green space strategy.

(vi) Emerging Joint Local Plan (with Stoke-on-Trent Council)
Through the planning policy function the Council is required to assess the supply of 
deliverable and or developable land in order to demonstrate a future supply of sites which is 
sufficient to meet future housing and employment needs. Key evidence relating to housing 
need is set out in the Joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and key evidence 
relating to the supply of land is to be set out in an update of the council’s Strategic Housing 
Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA). The latter will involve an assessment of all council 
owned sites, which have historically being considered for development, to determine 
whether they have development potential, i.e. suitable, available and achievable for housing 
development and the likelihood of potential development sites coming forward. A primary 
role of the Joint Local Plan will be to bring this evidence together and to specify how many 
houses are required to be built and to specify how much land is required over the next 20 
years and in which locations, to meet the borough’s housing development needs to help 
ensure that sustainable economic growth is achieved.

(vii) Housing Strategy (2010 – 2015)
The Council has an adopted Housing Strategy which seeks to support the delivery of 
housing, particularly homes that are affordable. Consultation is due to commence on the 
2016-21 Housing Strategy. This draft Housing Strategy has recognised that the development 
of housing and specifically the development of affordable housing are important, as this 
would meet housing need and would also contribute to economic growth.

There are many issues that affect the need to build housing, however there are several key 
background issues to highlight:

 Availability of homes for young working families to buy. 
The average terraced property in the Borough costs £99,401.The measure of house 
prices to earnings is used to assess affordability. It is deemed that households will not be 
able to afford and buy on the open market when and where house prices to earnings are 
greater than a ratio of 3.5. In Newcastle under Lyme, the affordability ratios are 5.17 for 
lower quartile properties and 5.29 for average priced properties.

 Provision of affordable homes for local people who are in housing need
In 2014, there were over 1800 households on the housing register seeking assistance to 
meet their housing need. During that year, 685, social housing lettings were made. This 
means that for every social housing property there were 2.74 applicants.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
9

 Provision of specific types of homes such as bungalows and Extra Care to meet the 
needs of our increasingly elderly population. 

The population of the Borough is ageing and it is projected that in 2030, there will be a 
total of 12,202 households over the age of 65 who will be living alone within the Borough.  
This will have implications for housing within the Borough, as appropriate dwellings will 
have to be provided for older people both within the private and social sectors.

 Delivery of effective regeneration and economic development should be framed by a 
two-pronged approach.

Facilitating the improvement of poor quality housing as well as support for the 
development of high quality residential development (including homes that meet the 
expectations of more affluent residents).

4.0 Newcastle Borough Council’s Asset Management Strategy (2015 – 2018)
This review seeks to outline the national and local policies which should be considered as 
part of any good Asset Management Strategy. 

Policy Framework
The Asset Management Strategy identifies that the policy will be influenced by various 
factors including current government policy; the needs of the community; the needs of the 
organisation in delivering services and economic conditions. Taking account of these the 
Council’s key policies for asset management are as follows:

a) The Authority will only hold sufficient property to meet a service need or strategic 
objective;
b) Property is a corporate asset and will be managed as such;
c) Service demands on the estate will be met in the most cost effective manner 
available to the Authority;
d) Properties held for service needs will be suitable for their intended purpose and;
e) The condition of the Authority’s estate will be maintained at the best possible level 
to meet the needs of the operational activities (taking account of available resources) 
with best endeavours being used to optimise the environmental performance of all 
properties.

Objectives
The Strategy identifies that it is appropriate that the Council has clear objectives relating to 
the use of its property assets and these are summarised below:

a) To facilitate and contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities and 
objectives;
b) To support service delivery requirements;
c) To optimise capital receipts from disposal of surplus land/property to provide funds 
for capital programme expenditure;
d) To achieve optimum utilisation of property assets;
e) To optimise income from the Commercial Portfolio;
f) To invest available funding in areas of greatest need or opportunity (including 
essential maintenance and repair); 



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
10

g) To demonstrate the efficient use of resources on land and property owned by the 
Authority;
h) To minimise the opportunity cost of holding land and property assets;
i) To keep the property portfolio under review (at least annually) with the aim of 
disposing of land or property for which there is no strategic, financial, operational or 
other public interest reason for retention;
j) To minimise the adverse environmental impacts of the portfolio and;
k) To engage with local community and third sector organisations to optimise the 
effective and efficient use of community assets.

Benefits/Outcomes
The Strategy identifies the Benefits of good asset management as: 

• Improved services through better buildings and co-location of services
• Improvements in efficiency, which generate financial savings
• Reduced maintenance backlog
• Better utilisation of property
• Release of capital through sale of surplus assets
• Potential to drive regeneration outcomes both economic and housing growth

5.0 Conclusion
The report outlines that from a national policy perspective there is an expectation that all 
local authorities effectively manage their assets to: 

 enable efficient and sustainable delivery of services; 
 contribute to funding of service delivery through generating capital receipts; 
 enable delivery of housing (and other appropriate development) to meet needs and 

achieve economic growth. 

It is considered that the current Asset Management Strategy meets the needs and objectives 
set out in a wide range of national and local policies. Critically it supports the generation of 
capital receipts to fund the Capital Programme and contributes to the delivery of much-
needed housing within the Borough.

There is a clear and ongoing expectation from Central government to accelerate the disposal 
of surplus public land for the purposes of housing delivery and that councils have a 
significant contribution to make to achieve this policy. 

In these circumstances it is concluded that the Council should reaffirm its previous policy 
stance, as set out in the current Asset Management Strategy. 


	Agenda
	4 Planned Capital Expenditure
	5 Funding Options
	6 Asset Policy Committee Policy Paper

